

Bowman & Associates Pty Ltd

Environmental Engineering Consultants Waste Management Specialists

Tel: 0402 373 582 www.bowmanassociates.com.au PO Box 2059, ROSSMOYNE WA 6148

A Richards Pty Ltd

RICHGRO COMPOSTING FACILITY – CULFORD AGRI INDUSTRY PRECINCT, NORTH BANNISTER

This document describes the proposal to develop a composting facility at Culford Agri Industry Precinct at North Bannister.



DISCLAIMER

In order to provide structure to the conclusions derived in this document certain assumptions have been made. These assumptions are based on the Consultant's informal enquiries, knowledge and experience from working in the waste management industry.

The content contained herewith has been compiled in good faith using normal industry practices employed by Environmental Engineers and Environmental Scientists. Bowman & Associates Pty Ltd accepts no liability for loss or damages incurred by any individual or organisation due to reliance on the included content.

This document and its contents cannot be used for any other purpose or reasons other than those agreed between the Client and Bowman & Associates Pty Ltd without first obtaining written consent from Bowman & Associates Pty Ltd.

Version	Date Issued	Prepared By	Approved By	Approved Signature
1	27.08.2018	B Bowman	B Bowman	
2	22.10.2018	B Bowman	B Bowman	1
3	29.10.2018	B Bowman	B Bowman	baban

DOCUMENT CONTROL

DOCUMENT DISTRIBUTION

Version	Date	Format	Issued to	Organisation
1	27.08.2018	pdf	Tim Richards	A Richards Pty Ltd
2	22.10.2018	pdf	Tim Richards	A Richards Pty Ltd
3	29.10.2018	pdf	Tim Richards	A Richards Pty Ltd
3	29.10.2018	pdf	Steve Thompson	Shire of Boddington

FILE NAME

181029 Richgro Culford Composting Facility DA.Docx

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1	Preli	minaries	7
1	1	Proposal	7
1	2	Proponent	8
1	3	Quality Assured	9
1	4	Consultant	9
1	5	Site Location	9
1	6	Approval from Landlord	9
1	7	Zoning	9
1	8	Surrounding Land Uses1	0
1	9	Separation Distances1	0
1	.10	Surrounding Road Network1	1
1	.11	Climate1	1
1	.12	Vegetation1	1
1	.13	Flora and Fauna1	1
1	14	Topography1	1
1	15	Department of Water Catchment1	1
1	16	Geology1	2
1	17	Acid Sulphate Soils1	2
1	18	Social Aspects1	2
1	.19	Aboriginal Heritage1	2
1	.20	Visual Amenity1	3
1	.21	Surface Water1	3
1	.22	Groundwater1	3
1	.23	Noise1	4
1	24	Odour1	4
1	.25	Proposed Construction Timing1	4
1	.26	Concept Drawings1	4
2	Com	posting Hardstands1	4
2	2.1	Pavement Construction1	4
2	2.2	Asphalt Seal1	5
3	Leac	hate Pond1	5
Э	3.1	High Density Polyethylene (HDPE) Geomembrane1	5
4	Com	posting Process1	5
4	1.1	Feed Stocks1	5
2	l.2	Receiving Feed Stocks1	6
4	I.3	Inoculant1	6
Z	1.4	Composting Windrows1	6
5	Emis	ssions Control1	8
5	5.1	Odour Management1	8
5	5.2	Dust Management1	9
5	5.3	Litter Management1	9

5.4	Noise Management	20
5.5	Surface Water Management	20
5.6	Vermin Management	21
5.7	Discharges to Water	21
5.8	Discharges to Land	21
5.9	Other Considerations	21
6 Nat	ive Vegetation Clearing	21
7 Sep	aration Distances	21
8 WA	PC Check List	22
9 Con	clusion	24
10 Refe	erences	24
11 App	endices	24
11.1	Appendix A – ASIC Company Extract	25
11.2	Appendix B – Certificate of Title and Lot Location Map	31
11.3	Appendic C – Authority to Proceed letter	35
12 Dra	wings	37

FIGURES

Figure 1:	Layout of the Stage 1 development	8
Figure 2:	Nearest sensitive receptors	10
Figure 3:	Topography of the area	12
Figure 4:	Surface water tributaries	13
Figure 5:	Leachate Pond Configuration	15
Figure 6:	Composting process	17

TABLES

Table 1	Buffer distances	.22
Table 2	Site Selection Considerations	. 22

DRAWINGS

Drawing CUL-COM-001	Cover Sheet, Locality Plan and Drawing Schedule	37
Drawing CUL-COM-002	Site Plan	37
Drawing CUL-COM-003	Overall Plan Layout	37
Drawing CUL-COM-004	General Works Layout – Plan 1 of 3	37
Drawing CUL-COM-005	General Works Layout – Plan 2 of 3	37
Drawing CUL-COM-006	General Works Layout – Plan 3 of 3	37
Drawing CUL-COM-007	Earthworks Layout Plan	37
Drawing CUL-COM-008	Site Sections – Sheet 1 of 2	37
Drawing CUL-COM-009	Site Sections – Sheet 2 of 2	37
Drawing CUL-COM-010	Miscellaneous Details – Sheet 1 of 2	37
Drawing CUL-COM-011	Miscellaneous Details – Sheet 2 of 2	37
Drawing CUL-COM-012	Setout Layout Plan	37
Drawing CUL-COM-013	Prescribed Area Plan	37



ACRONYMS

AHD	Australian Height Datum
A Richards Pty Ltd	Richgro
AS	Australian Standard
BOM	Bureau of Meteorology
Consultant	Bowman & Associates Pty Ltd
DWER	Department of Water and Environmental Regulation
EPA	Environmental Protection Authority
ha	Hectare
HDPE	High Density Polyethylene
IFD	Infrequent and Frequent Design Rainfall Depth
kL	Kilolitre
km	Kilometre
kph	Kilometre per Hour
L/m ²	Litres per square metre
m	Metre
mg/L	Milligrams per Litre
mm	Millimetre
TDS	Total Dissolved Solids
tpa	Tonnes per annum
VOC	Volatile Organic Compounds



1 PRELIMINARIES

Bowman & Associates Pty Ltd (Consultant) has been engaged by A Richards Pty Ltd (Richgro) to prepare and lodge a Development Application to establish a Prescribed Premise at Culford Agri Industry Precinct, 6364 Albany Highway, Bannister, in the Shire of Boddington.

It is proposed that the facility will be licenced by the Department of Water and Environmental Regulation (DWER) as:

- Category 61 Liquid waste facility;
- Category 62 solid waste facility; and
- Category 67A compost manufacturing and soil blending.

The facility is to be known as the Richgro Composting Facility. The licenced capacity of the facility is proposed as 200,000 tonne per annum.

The Richgro Composting Facility at 203 Acourt Road, Jandakot is under increasing pressure due to Lot size restraints and the encroachment of residential subdivisions and Richgro is seeking a new facility to allow expansion of its activities. The Culford Agri Industry Precinct offers a buffer of 3.8 km to the nearest sensitive receptor. The new site at Culford Agri Industry Precinct will allow Richgro to expand its operation and develop new composting processes.

1.1 PROPOSAL

Richgro proposes to construct a sealed hardstand of approximately 33,000 m², leachate pond, stormwater pond and office complex on Lot 68 at the Culford Agri Industry Precinct as part of the Stage 1 development of the facility development. **Figure 1** shows the layout of Stage 1, further detail for Stage 1 can be found on the **Drawings**.

Richgro has the option to expand the facility in the future if required. Future development will be carried out as Stage 2 and Stage 3. Future development of the facility will not occur until after the next blue gum plantation harvest which is due to occur in 2022 -2023 period.





Figure 1: Layout of the Stage 1 development

1.2 PROPONENT

A Richards Pty Ltd, (ABN 97 008 734 852), is a fourth-generation family business that has been manufacturing premium garden products since 1916. Refer **Appendix A** for ASIC Certificate. The company is owned by Geoffrey John Richards.

Richgro manufactures compost at Jandakot and Nowergup. The company produces over 600 garden products which are sold in leading garden centres and hardware outlets throughout Australia, including Bunnings Warehouse, Home Timber & Hardware, Big W, and Mitre 10.

Richgro also offers more natural, organic, and environmentally friendly products as part of its commitment towards environmental preservation and a sustainable future. The Retail Division has manufacturing sites in Western Australia, South Australia, New South Wales and Victoria. Richgro also has several subsidiaries, including Richgro Laboratory Services, which supplies testing services to the industry; Richgro Commercial, which attends to the WA Growers' Market; and Amazon Soils which is one of WA's largest manufacturers of bulk mulch, compost, and blended soils.

Contact details for A Richards Pty Ltd are as follows:

Address A Richards Pty Ltd 203 Acourt Rd Jandakot 6164

Key Contact Tim Richards Postal Address A Richards Pty Ltd PO Box 1406 Canning Vale 6970



Phone: 08 6258 7103 Email: <u>tim@richgro.com.au</u>

1.3 QUALITY ASSURED

Richgro is an ISO9001 quality endorsed company. Richgro supplies quality certified products in accordance with Australian Standard *AS4454 Composts, Soil Conditioners and Mulches,* and Australian Standard *AS3743 Potting Mixes*. Richgro also has *Australian Certified Organic* certification on a number of fertilisers and soil conditioners and water saving certification on its soil wetters and mulches.

1.4 CONSULTANT

Bowman & Associates Pty Ltd (ABN 22 112 399 514) is an Environmental Engineering Consultancy specialising in waste management, environmental impact assessment, environmental approvals, project management, tender preparation, transport logistics and waste management technology assessment.

The Consultants contact details are as follows:

Postal Address

Bowman & Associates Pty Ltd PO Box 2059 Rossmoyne WA 6148

Key Contact Bruce Bowman Director Mobile: 0402 373 582 Email: bruce@bowmanassociates.com.au

1.5 SITE LOCATION

The proposed Richgro Composting Facility is located on Lot 68, Deposited Plan 36563, in the Shire of Boddington. The Lot is owned by AB No2 Pty Ltd atf Culford Unit Trust of Suite 6, 117 Broadway, Nedlands WA 6009. Lot 68 covers an area of 258 ha and is currently used by AB No2 Pty Ltd for plantation timber and sheep grazing. Culford Agri Industry Precinct, as the property is now known, is in the process of being converted from plantation timber to industries that require a Prescribed Licence to operate. Refer **Appendix B** for Certificate of Title and Lot Plan.

1.6 APPROVAL FROM LANDLORD

Lot 68 is owned by AB No2 Pty Ltd atf Culford Unit Trust and will be leased to A Richards Pty Ltd as a site for the composting facility. Attached as **Appendix C** is a letter from AB No2 Pty Ltd verifying its approval for the facility to proceed.

1.7 ZONING

The site and surrounding areas are zoned as 'Rural' in Shire of Boddington *Town Planning Scheme 2* on *Map 2 of 6, Mount Wells Locality*. The site is currently being used for blue gum plantation and sheep grazing. There is no category for composting in the *Town Planning Scheme 2* therefore it is expected that the Facility will be approved as 'Use Not Listed' by the Shire of Boddington.



1.8 SURROUNDING LAND USES

The proposed site for the Richgro Composting Facility is surrounded by land consisting of agricultural land and plantation timber. To the north are State Forest and the Serpentine Dam P2 water catchment. The immediate land to the north is on Lot 68 and supports Culford Agri Industry Precinct blue gum plantation timber.

At a distance of 2.6 km to the east is the Albany Highway. Further east, on the eastern side of the Albany Highway is State Forest.

To the south, and beyond Lot 68, is bluegum plantation owned by Newmont. The distance from the proposed Richgro Composting Facility and the Newmont boundary is 1.2 km.

To the west is the North Bannister Waste Disposal Facility owned by SUEZ.

1.9 SEPARATION DISTANCES

For a composting facility with capacity above 35,000 tpa the DWER requires the separation distance between a composting facility and a sensitive land use to be accessed on a case by case basis.¹

The nearest residence is located 2.5 km east of the proposed Richgro Composting Facility and is the homestead on Culford Agri Industry Precinct. As the homestead is part of the Culford Agri Industry Precinct it is not considered a sensitive receptor.

At a distance of 3.8 km south, south east of the proposed Richgro Composting Facility is the Three Ways Road House, refer **Figure 2**.



Figure 2: Nearest sensitive receptors

¹ DWER Guideline Separation Distances (August 2015)



1.10 SURROUNDING ROAD NETWORK

The Richgro Composting Facility will be accessed from the Albany Highway. The main Roads WA RAV mapping tool indicates that the Albany Highway at North Bannister is a Category 7 road allowing use by road trains to 107.5 tonnes gross vehicle mass and up to 36.5 m in length.

1.11 CLIMATE

The Bureau of Meteorology weather station (10648) located in Wandering has recorded the following historical data (1901 - 2003):

_	Mean Annual Rainfall (years 1887 to 2003)	614 mm
_	Evapotranspiration (years 1967 to 2017) ²	1,437 mm
_	Mean Maximum Temperature (for 12 months combined)	23.0 °C
_	Mean Minimum Temperature (for 12 months combined)	8.5 °C

1.12 VEGETATION

The site is almost completely cleared of natural vegetation as the site is currently used as a blue gum plantation.

1.13 FLORA AND FAUNA

The Richgro Composting Facility is to be established within blue gum plantation which will be cleared prior to the commencement of works. Apart from transient kangaroo grazing the blue gum plantation does not support native flora and fauna as the area has been almost completely cleared of native vegetation prior to the establishment of the blue gum plantation.

1.14 TOPOGRAPHY

The site is reasonably flat with a slight fall, 4 - 5%, to the south west. The highest elevation on the proposed site is 350 mAHD (metres above the Australian Height Datum) which is in the south east corner where offices and site entry will be located. The lowest location is in the south west corner at 325 mAHD, Refer **Figure 2**.

1.15 DEPARTMENT OF WATER CATCHMENT

The entire composting area is outside the Serpentine Dam P2 water catchment area which is located to the north east of the proposed Richgro Composting Facility. **Figure 3** shows the approximate elevation and location of the P2 catchment.

² Dwellingup Weather station 009538 used for evaporation and no records for Wandering





Figure 3: Topography of the area

Source: Landgate WA

1.16 GEOLOGY

A hydrogeological assessment was undertaken by Global Groundwater in May 2017. The resultant report, *Culford Agri Industry Hydrogeological Assessment for Culford Agri Water*, summarised to local geology as follows.

"The geology comprises lateritic caprock, pisolitic gravel, saprolite and weathered profile over Archaean granitic basement rock and dolerite dykes".

1.17 ACID SULPHATE SOILS

A search of the Perth Groundwater Map was performed and revealed that there is no known presence of acid sulphate soils within the area.

1.18 SOCIAL ASPECTS

The site has been cleared and used as agricultural land for many years. The location of the Richgro Composting Facility will be completely enclosed by vegetation and not visible from the boundary of Culford Agri Industry Precinct.

1.19 ABORIGINAL HERITAGE

An online search on the Aboriginal Heritage Inquiry System has identified no aboriginal heritage sites that lie within or close proximity of the proposed Richgro Composting Facility.

The search showed no other heritage places on or near the proposed site.



1.20 VISUAL AMENITY

The location of the proposed premise is at the rear of Culford Agri Industry Precinct. Due to the undulating topography on Culford Agri Industry Precinct and the dominance of native bush and blue gum plantation, the Richgro Composting Facility will not be visible to any location outside Culford Agri Industry Precinct.

1.21 SURFACE WATER

Stormwater will be collected in drains constructed around the site and travel to the south west where a stormwater dam will be constructed. Overflow from the stormwater dam will flow into the surrounding plantations. On Lot 68 there is an un-named tributary that flows to Gringer Creek. Gringer Creek is located approximately 4.4 km to the south of the proposed facility. Gringer Creek then joins the Hotham River at a distance of 25 km near the township of Boddington.

Stormwater falling on the composting hardstand will be collected in drains around the hardstand and directed to the south west corner of the hardstand, downslope, to the leachate pond. The leachate pond will be lined with high density polyethylene (HDPE). **Figure 4** shows the water courses down gradient of the Richgro Composting Facility



1.22 GROUNDWATER

The Perth Groundwater Map does not extend into the area of the proposed Richgro Composting Facility. Global Groundwater, in its report, *Culford Agri Industry Hydrogeological Assessment for*



Culford Agri Water, stated that groundwater at Culford Agri Industry Precinct is stored in fractures and weathered basement rocks. Groundwater salinity recorded at the base of bores during drilling was brackish, with a Total Dissolved Solids (TDS) ranging from 712 to 2734 mg/L. Depth to groundwater across Lot 68 varied between 5.7 m to 27.7 m below ground level.

As the groundwater is contained in fractures in the underlying rock there is no substantial water body beneath the area.

1.23 NOISE

Minimal noise impact is envisaged to occur at the proposed site due to the large buffer distance from the main sensitive premise, Three Ways Road House, which is 3.8 km to the south-east. The Richgro Composting Facility will be surrounded by a buffer of blue gum trees providing excellent noise attenuation.

The composting facility will operate between the hours of 6:00 am and 5:00 pm Monday to Saturday. Potentially there may be deliveries outside the above hours.

1.24 ODOUR

The feed stocks used in composting can by odorous. Punctual use of incoming feed stocks, good housekeeping and complying with the required operational procedures will minimise the presence of odour. The large buffer distances that are inherent in the location further reduce the risk of nuisance odours.

1.25 PROPOSED CONSTRUCTION TIMING

The construction works for the Richgro Composting Facility is to take place in December 2018.

1.26 CONCEPT DRAWINGS

A set of Drawings is included to provide detail on the design of the proposed Richgro Composting Facility.

2 COMPOSTING HARDSTANDS

2.1 PAVEMENT CONSTRUCTION

A composting hardstand will be constructed for composting operations. Refer Drawings for details. The composting hardstand shall be constructed on the prepared subgrade surface and consist of a 250 mm thick granular basecourse layer with gravel materials sourced from Culford Agri Industry Precinct.

The basecourse gravel shall be uniformly compacted. The characteristics of the basecourse layer for the composting hardstand to be considered are:

- Moisture content on placement to be between 1% dry and 2% wet of optimum moisture content (using standard compaction), and
- A minimum standard compaction during placement of 98%.

2.2 ASPHALT SEAL

The surface of the basecourse shall be sealed with an impervious layer of asphalt with the following characteristics:

- $-\,$ Bitumen primer and seal coat at a rate of 1.6 L/m^2 and 10 mm granite scatter to seal the hardstand, and
- 40 mm thick dense grade black asphalt using 14 mm granite laid on top of the seal layer. This will prevent the sealed layer from damage caused by any composting activity, vehicle movements and removal (scraping) of compost material during or after the composting process.

3 LEACHATE POND

3.1 HIGH DENSITY POLYETHYLENE (HDPE) GEOMEMBRANE

The High Density Polyethylene (HDPE) geomembrane liner will be used to line the leachate pond. The HDPE shall be a new, top-quality product designed specifically for use as a pond geomembrane and have a thickness of not less than 2.0 mm. The geomembrane shall be uniform and free of pinholes, blisters, undispersed raw materials and contamination by foreign matter. **Figure 5** shows the pond liner configuration.





The depth of the leachate pond shall be 6.0 m. The design operating depth for leachate storage shall be 5.0 m providing a 1.0 m freeboard for wave action and storm surge. The internal batter slope of the leachate pond shall be a gradient of 1:3.

4 COMPOSTING PROCESS

4.1 FEED STOCKS

Feed stocks used by Richgro are varied and can consist of, but not limited to:

Inoculant;

- Greenwaste;
- Foodwaste;
- Animal manures;
- Dead animals (cattle, sheep, pigs, poultry);
- Biosolids;
- Grease trap waste;
- Liquid waste from food production;
- Paper pulp;
- Cardboard;
- Plantation waste;
- Straw;
- Spent grain; and
- Wood chip.

The above list is not to be considered complete. The Richgro Composting Facility intends to compost any organic material that is delivered to the facility following approval of receipt. Basically any organic material that is capable of being a feed stock for composting.

4.2 RECEIVING FEED STOCKS

Feed stocks will be delivered in bulk tippers and for liquid waste in tankers. These vehicles will have their loads fully covered during transport. Upon arrival at the proposed facility the driver will report to the site office and receive instruction regarding the disposal location for the feed stock.

Odorous feed stocks and chicken manure will be delivered directly to the hardstand for blending with other feedstock to form windrows. Less odorous feed stocks will be placed in storage stockpiles for use at the next convenient occasion.

Liquid waste will be delivered to the mixing pit and blended directly into the feedstock.



³ Section 6.3 and 6.4 are to be kept confidential





5 EMISSIONS CONTROL

A layer of mature compost will be placed on top of each composting windrow to act as a bio-filter during the early stages of composting. The mature layer will reduce emissions that could potentially cause odour. No emissions will be discharged to the surrounding environment from the Richgro Composting Facility. The design phase has considered possible emissions and discharges during the operation of the facility. With correct operation and adherence to the process management practices described in this document, the Richgro Composting Facility is expected to produce no significant impact on the surrounding environment. Mechanisms have been developed for managing odour, noise, litter, water and vermin.

5.1 ODOUR MANAGEMENT

Odour management will be consistent with the EPA (2002a) *Interim Guidance Statement for the Assessment of Odour Impacts (No. 47)*. Odour modelling has not been carried out as the location of the composting facility is very remote and offers large buffers around the facility.

Two processes at the Richgro Composting Facility have the potential to generate nuisance odour, the mixing of feedstock material and the decomposition of organic material in the composting windrows.

During the batching process, liquid waste, composting leachate and stormwater are added to the feedstock to condition the material for composting.

Odour generation is minimised by:

- Continually processing feed stocks as quickly as possible, limiting the time the material is exposed to atmosphere;
- When multiple loads of organic feedstock material are delivered to site, processing the material on a first-in, first-out basis to limit uncovered decomposition times;
- Cleaning processing areas of stray feedstock material at the end of every day; and
- Clean up all areas where feed stock has been stored at the end of every day.

During the composting process odour generation is minimised by:

- All feed stocks delivered to the facility and bulk compost products leaving the facility will be contained in covered trucks to minimise potential odour emissions;
- The feed stocks accepted at the facility will be strictly in accordance with licence conditions.
 No prohibited waste is accepted at the site;
- Odorous feed stocks will be processed immediately upon receipt; and
- Weather conditions are monitored on-site.
- Maintaining aerobic composting conditions in the windrows to prevent odorous anaerobic decomposition of organic materials;
- Maintaining optimum temperature and moisture content conditions in the composting windrows to ensure rapid decomposition of organics; and
- Managing the transition of compost through each phase of the compost process.



The proposed Richgro Composting Facility is located on an isolated property with large separation distances to any sensitive receptors in an area surrounded by State forest and tree farms. The proposed odour minimisation strategies to be employed in the operation of the facility are considered to be sufficient to minimise the risk of offsite odour impact from the operation of the Richgro Composting Facility.

5.2 DUST MANAGEMENT

Dust generation is limited on site by confining the composting facility operations to the sealed hardstand, keeping the composting material moist and avoiding dust generating activities during windy conditions.

The following management and mitigation measures are proposed to manage air and dust emissions during the construction and operation of the facility:

- Materials excavated as part of the earthworks activities will be stockpiled within the premises and kept moist;
- Unsealed exposed areas and earthworks will be watered down regularly, or as required, to minimise windblown dust migration;
- All site traffic will adhere to the site speed limit of 10 km/hr to minimise dust generated by vehicle movements;
- If visual dust inspections indicate that dust is being generated from the site, and is crossing the site boundary, then additional dust management techniques are to be adopted such as use of water trucks or sprays;
- Existing vegetated areas which are not required during the construction and operation of the facility will be maintained;
- Good housekeeping practices will be adopted on-site to minimise dust generation; and
- When operational all feed stock materials delivered to the facility will be contained in covered trucks, which is only unloaded within the appropriate area of the facility.

The operational practices proposed are sufficient to limit potential dust emissions from the site.

5.3 LITTER MANAGEMENT

Only clean feed stocks will be delivered to the Richgro Composting Facility. A periodic patrol for litter by staff and instruction to materials transport road train drivers to cover their loads is considered to be sufficient measures to maintain a litter free site.

Management practices which will be adopted at the facility to minimise the potential impact on amenity include:

- A policy of good housekeeping at the facility throughout construction and operation phases;
- Daily inspections of the facility will be undertaken by Richgro and litter collected for disposal;
- Site boundary fences will be used to control any litter which migrates outside the facility;



and

 Regular inspections will be performed of the site boundary fences, with collection of litter around the site boundary.

5.4 NOISE MANAGEMENT

The operation of the Richgro Composting Facility has a variety of machinery and equipment that has the potential to generate nuisance noise. Size reduction activities of greenwaste will be carried out, in most cases, prior to delivery of greenwaste to the facility. Given the extremely large separation distance to the nearest sensitive premises (3.8 km) and the nature of the activities to be undertaken on site, the risk of offsite noise emission impacts is considered to be minimal.

Potential sources of noise emissions are the plant (loader and screening plant) operating on site. All operations on site will be undertaken during the normal operating hours which will be between 6:00 am and 5:00 pm Monday to Saturday. Plant machinery will be kept in good working order with regular servicing and maintenance of mufflers and moving parts.

The management and mitigation measures outlined below ensure that the facility complies with the *Environmental Protection (Noise) Regulations 1997 (As Amended)* at all times.

The following initiatives are undertaken to minimise noise emissions:

- Personnel will have access at all times to operational manuals for equipment being utilised and will be familiar with the procedures detailed in the operations manual;
- A Complaints Register will be maintained at the administration office to record any complaints received; this register will include the date, nature and resolution action of any complaints received;
- Following complaints, the source of any excessive noise will be identified and work practices modified or re-scheduled to reduce or eliminate the risk of future events;
- Traffic speed will be maintained to less than 10 kph while travelling through the site; and
- All mobile plant used on-site will be regularly maintained, including exhaust mufflers.

The principal source of noise emissions during the works will be from earthmoving equipment and construction traffic. Construction contractors will only be working daylight hours from 6.00 am and 5.00 pm. It is unlikely that the noise from the construction works will produce significant noise emissions, above the levels of the ongoing site operational works.

5.5 SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT

The minimal amount of leachate generated by the composting process is rich in nutrients, but otherwise not harmful to the environment, being comprised of liquid released during the composting process.

Runoff from the hardstands is collected in the lined leachate pond and recycled into the composting process. No compost leachate will be discharged into the surrounding environment.



5.6 VERMIN MANAGEMENT

The design and operational features proposed for the Richgro Composting Facility significantly limit the potential for vermin issues to develop. Processing odorous feed stocks as they arrive, cycling organic feedstock on a first-in first-out basis, daily cleaning of mixing areas, secure site fencing and regular maintenance of equipment will all limit the potential for vermin issues to arise.

5.7 DISCHARGES TO WATER

The facility will be fully drained to separate leachate from the composting hardstand from coming into contact with clean stormwater. Stormwater will be directed around the site by a drainage network and collected in a stormwater dam located down slope of the facility. Excess water in the stormwater dam will exit the facility in the south western corner of the facility and enter the existing blue gum plantation.

Leachate from the composting hardstand will run by gravity through a network of drains and be collected in the HDPE lined leachate pond.

5.8 DISCHARGES TO LAND

The entire composting area of the facility will be fully sealed with asphalt. There is no potential for any discharges to land.

5.9 OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

Other pollution types and sources that were considered, but determined to be not applicable to this site are outlined below:

- Groundwater contamination has been considered. All runoff is collected in a lined leachate pond for reuse in composting process which is undertaken on an impermeable asphalt hardstand;
- Light emissions will not be produced at the Richgro Composting Facility as operations will be during normal working hours;
- Hydrocarbon contamination is not an issue, as fuel will be stored in a bunded fuel tank and appropriate measures will be in place for managing small spills; and
- Hazardous materials will not be processed, or used, at the composting facility.

6 NATIVE VEGETATION CLEARING

Native vegetation clearing is not required for these Works as the composting facility will be developed on blue gum and redundant trial plantation areas.

7 SEPARATION DISTANCES

Sensitive land uses are described in the DWER Guidance Statement *Separation Distances*, (August 2015), as locations where people regularly live or spend time. Sensitive land uses include residences, hospitals, nursing homes, short stay accommodation, schools, childcare and other educational facilities. The facility is positioned within a developed rural area and provides appropriate separation distances to the surrounding sensitive receptors and property boundaries. Separation distances to nearest sensitive land users are summarised in **Table 1**.



Table 1 Buffer distances

Buffer Description	Separation Distance (m)
Three Way Road House	3,800

8 WAPC CHECK LIST

The Western Australian Planning Commission, *Basic Raw Materials Applicants' Manual*, 2009, has been referred to during the preparation of this Development Application. Included in the *Manual* are a series of Check Lists to ensure all information has been submitted. Following are the *Manual's* Checklists.

Table 2 Site Selection Considerations

Site location considerations	Tick
The site has safe access to major roads, and existing roads are in good condition. The access roads proposed are suitable for the volume of traffic and type of heavy vehicles.	~
The site is not in a visually significant location, such as on a ridge, or visible from major roads.	~
The site is not situated within 500 metres to 1000 metres of any sensitive land uses, such as residential development, schools, and hospitals.	\checkmark
The proposed activity is compatible with surrounding land uses.	\checkmark
The proposed activity will not cause disturbance to the amenity of the area.	✓
The site will not have a negative visual impact on major roads, scenic areas or adjoining properties.	✓
The site provides an adequate separation distance to any residential or special rural area, or existing dwelling in a rural area. Typically separation distances should be 500 metres to 1000 metres.	~
Operational issues such as hours of operation, noise and dust monitoring and site access are addressed with the view to minimising any potential noise or dust issues for surrounding sites.	~
Other relevant state and local planning policies and strategies, including but not limited to the following have been addressed:	√
State Planning Policy 2.4 Basic Raw Materials	
State Planning Policy 4.1 State Industrial Buffer Policy	
extractive industry local laws	
local planning scheme provisions	
region scheme planning provisions	
Environmental attributes	
The site is not considered priority agricultural land.	\checkmark
The proposal will not involve major disturbance of acid sulphate soils	\checkmark
The proposal will not involve significant clearing of native vegetation, that is, the site is bare of vegetation from previous uses or does not contain good quality bushland of	~

significant quantity.	
The site provides adequate setback to existing wetlands, water courses and drainage lines.	~
The site is not listed as a Bush Forever area.	\checkmark
Planning considerations	
The nature of the proposed activity is consistent with the current zoning, and any proposed zoning.	Х
The timeframe for the proposed activity takes into account the long-term impact on the local community.	\checkmark

- Application submission checklist – local government

Legal considerations	Tick
Written consent from owners of site	✓
DWER approval – clearing permit (where applicable)	N/A
Extractive industry licence	N/A
Local government submission form and fees	\checkmark
WAPC submission form and fees (where applicable)	N/A
Certificate of Title	\checkmark
Site details	
Existing and proposed land contours	\checkmark
Description of land – roads, boundaries, fences, existing buildings, waterways, ridge lines, existing vegetation etc	\checkmark
Proposed extractive industry details	
Location, total area and depth of proposed excavation	N/A
Location and proposed maximum height of stockpiles	N/A
How much material is proposed to be extracted (on an annual and total basis)	N/A
Method and route(s) of proposed vehicle access to and from the site	✓
Location of proposed buildings, treatment plants, tanks etc	\checkmark
Details of management of operation	
Noise attenuation - hours of operation, types of vehicles to be used, maximum number of truck movements per day, earth bunding	\checkmark
Screening – location of screening and species to be planted, staging of operations	✓
Dust management plan	N/A
Environmental management - measures to protect existing vegetation, acid sulphate soil management, dieback control, fire management, water quality management, drainage details, and treatment of wastes	✓
Rehabilitation plan	N/A

9 CONCLUSION

This Development Application document and its Appendices describe the development of a new composting facility to be located on Culford Agri Industry Precinct. The new facility will allow Richgro to expand its composting operation and introduce new technologies for composting materials. The new facility is intended to provide the waste industry with new options for the diversion of organics from the landfill disposal waste stream.

The location of the proposed facility is in a remote location and provides a buffer distance of 3.8 km to the nearest sensitive receptor, which is the Three Ways Road House.

The development of the facility is largely assisted by the established practices and infrastructure at Culford Agri Industry Precinct including road train access, sealed bitumen access road across Culford Agri Industry Precinct and large buffer distances due to the size of Culford Agri Industry Precinct.

10 REFERENCES

Bureau of Meteorology website

DER Guidance Statement, August 2015. Separation Distances

Environmental Protection Act 1986 (EP Act). Government of Western Australia

Environmental Protection (Noise) Regulations 1997 (As Amended)

EPA (2002a) Interim Guidance Statement for the Assessment of Odour Impacts (No. 47)

Global Groundwater. May 2017. Culford Agri Industry Hydrogeological Assessment for Culford Agri Water

Landgate Map Viewer

Shire of Boddington Town Planning Scheme 2 on Map 2 of 6, Mount Wells Locality

Standards Australia. AS/NZS ISO 31000:2009, Australian Standard Risk Management

Standards Australia. AS 5667.1998, Water Quality Sampling

Weather Bureau. Rainfall IFD Data System

11 APPENDICES



11.1 APPENDIX A – ASIC COMPANY EXTRACT







Current Company Extract

Name: A. RICHARDS PTY LTD ACN: 008 734 852

Date/Time: 21 May 2018 AEST 12:51:14 PM

This extract contains information derived from the Australian Securities and Investments Commission's (ASIC) database under section 1274A of the Corporations Act 2001.

Please advise ASIC of any error or omission which you may identify.

EXTRACT

Organisation Details		Document Number
Current Organisation Details	3	
Name:	A. RICHARDS PTY LTD	004292184
ACN:	008 734 852	
ABN:	97008734852	
Registered in:	Western Australia	
Registration date:	08/05/1970	
Next review date:	08/05/2019	
Name start date:	08/05/1970	
Previous state number:	C0700986Z	
Status:	Registered	
Company type:	Australian Proprietary Company	
Class:	Limited By Shares	
Subclass:	Proprietary Company	

Address Details		Document Number
Current		
Registered address:	Lot 186 Acourt Road, CANNING VALE WA 6155	003331308
Start date:	03/12/1992	
Principal Place Of	Lot 186 Acourt Road, CANNING VALE WA 6155	00873485D
Business address:		
Start date:	30/06/1993	
Contact Address		

Section 146A of the Corporations Act 2001 states 'A contact address is the address to which communications and notices are sent from ASIC to the company'.

Address: 19 Argyll Walk, BELLEVUE HEIGHTS SA 5050

Start date: 28/06/2003

Officeholders and Other Role	S	Document Number
Director		
Name:	GEOFFREY JOHN RICHARDS	005017098
Address:	17 Ardross Street, APPLECROSS WA 6153	
Born:	30/04/1946, SUBIACO, WA	
Appointment date:	14/06/1974	
Secretary		
Name:	GEOFFREY JOHN RICHARDS	005017098
Address:	17 Ardross Street, APPLECROSS WA 6153	
Born:	30/04/1946, SUBIACO, WA	
Appointment date:	14/06/1974	
Appointed Auditor		
Name:	GRANT THORNTON AUDIT PTY LTD	7E7916787
Address:	Level 30 525 Collins Street MELBOURNE VIC 3000	
Start date:	08/06/2015	

Share Information

Class	Description	Number issued	Total amount paid	Total amount unpaid	Document number
A	CLASS A SHARES	1	1.00	0.00	0873485A
В	CLASS B SHARES	1	1.00	0.00	0873485A
С	CLASS C SHARES	2000	2000.00	0.00	0873485A
D	CLASS D SHARES	2000	2000.00	0.00	0873485A

Members

Note: For each class of shares issued by a proprietary company, ASIC records the details of the top twenty members of the class (based on shareholdings). The details of any other members holding the same number of shares as the twentieth ranked member will also be recorded by ASIC on the database. Where available, historical records show that a member has ceased to be ranked amongst the top twenty members. This may, but does not necessarily mean, that they have ceased to be a member of the company.

Name: GEOFFREY JOHN RICHARDS

Address: 17 Ardross Street, APPLECROSS WA 6153

Class	Number held	Beneficially held	Paid	Document number
А	1	yes	FULLY	0E6541328

Name: GEOFFREY JOHN RICHARDS

Address: 17 Ardross Street, APPLECROSS WA 6153

Class	Number held	Beneficially held	Paid	Document number
В	1	yes	FULLY	0E6541328

Name: GEOFFREY JOHN RICHARDS

Address: 17 Ardross Street, APPLECROSS WA 6153

Class	Number held	Beneficially held	Paid	Document number
С	2000	yes	FULLY	0873485A

Name:	J. & M. RICHARDS PTY LTD	
ACN:	008 748 623	

Address: 1369 Albany Highway, CANNINGTON WA 6107

Class	Number held	Beneficially held	Paid	Document number
D	2000	yes	FULLY	0873485A

Financial Reports

Balance date	Report due date	AGM due date	Extended AGM due	AGM held date	Outstanding	Document number
30/06/2013	31/10/2013				no	7E7916925
30/06/2014	31/10/2014				no	7E7916875
30/06/2015	31/10/2015				no	7E7916787
30/06/2016	31/10/2016				no	7E8815594
30/06/2017	31/10/2017				no	7E9747506

Documents

Note: Where no Date Processed is shown, the document in question has not been processed. In these instances care should be taken in using information that may be updated by the document when it is processed. Where the Date Processed is shown but there is a zero under No Pages, the document has been processed but a copy is not yet available.

Date received	Form type	Date processed	Number of pages	Effective date	Document number
29/04/2016	388 (FR 2015) Financial Report 388H Financial Report - Large Proprietary Company That Is Not A Disclosing Entity 388E Company - Appoint Change Name/address Of Auditor	29/04/2016	29	30/06/2015	7E7916787
29/04/2016	388H (FR 2014) Financial Report Financial Report - Large Proprietary Company That Is Not A Disclosing Entity	29/04/2016	32	30/06/2014	7E7916875
29/04/2016	388H (FR 2013) Financial Report Financial Report - Large Proprietary Company That Is Not A Disclosing Entity	29/04/2016	33	30/06/2013	7E7916925
28/02/2017	388H (FR 2016) Financial Report Financial Report - Large Proprietary Company That Is Not A Disclosing Entity	28/02/2017	31	30/06/2016	7E8815594

A. RICHARDS PTY LTD ACN 008 734 852

14/12/2017 388H (FR 2017) Financial Report Financial Report - Large Proprietary Company That Is Not A Disclosing Entity	14/12/2017	32	30/06/2017	7E9747506
---	------------	----	------------	-----------

End of Extract of 4 Pages

11.2 APPENDIX B – CERTIFICATE OF TITLE AND LOT LOCATION MAP



		68/	3	
WESTERN AUST	TRALIA	DUPLICATE EDITION N/A	DATE DUPLIC.	ATE ISSUED
RECORD OF CERTIFICATE	OF TIT	LE	VOLUME 2798	FOLIO 962
UNDER THE TRANSFER OF LAND A	ACT 1893			
The person described in the first schedule is the registered proprietor of an estate in fee simple in the eservations, conditions and depth limit contained in the original grant (if a grant issued) and to the originations shown in the second schedule.	he land described limitations, int	d below subjec erests, encumb	et to the prances and	1. Contraction of the second sec

LAND DESCRIPTION:

LOT 68 ON DEPOSITED PLAN 36563

REGISTERED PROPRIETOR: (FIRST SCHEDULE)

AB NO 2 PTY LTD OF SUITE 6, 117 BROADWAY, NEDLANDS

(XA M039255) REGISTERED 5 SEPTEMBER 2012

REGISTRAR OF TITLES

LIMITATIONS, INTERESTS, ENCUMBRANCES AND NOTIFICATIONS: (SECOND SCHEDULE)

- *L979475 LEASE TO WACAP TREEFARMS PTY LTD OF P.O. BOX 2453, BUNBURY EXPIRES: SEE LEASE. AS TO PORTION ONLY REGISTERED 29.6.2012.
 *L979477 EASEMENT TO PERTHWASTE PTY LTD - FOR RIGHT OF CARRIAGEWAY PURPOSES -
- SEE SKETCH ON DEPOSITED PLAN 71536 REGISTERED 29.6.2012.
- 3. *M039258 MORTGAGE TO NATIONAL AUSTRALIA BANK LTD REGISTERED 5.9.2012.

Warning: A current search of the sketch of the land should be obtained where detail of position, dimensions or area of the lot is required. * Any entries preceded by an asterisk may not appear on the current edition of the duplicate certificate of title. Lot as described in the land description may be a lot or location.

-----END OF CERTIFICATE OF TITLE------

STATEMENTS:

The statements set out below are not intended to be nor should they be relied on as substitutes for inspection of the land and the relevant documents or for local government, legal, surveying or other professional advice.

SKETCH O PREVIOUS PROPERTY	F LAND: TITLE: STREET A	DDRESS: T AREA:	DP36563 [SHEET 1]. 2228-246. NO STREET ADDRESS INFORMATION AVAILABLE. SHIRE OF BODDINGTON
Locilloc		r mulan.	
NOTE 1:	J538352	SECTION	N 138D TLA APPLIES TO CAVEAT H254572
NOTE 2:	K796153	LAND PA	ARCEL IDENTIFIER OF PORTION OF MURRAY LOCATION 527 AND BEING
		LOT 9 ON	N PLAN 2767 CHANGED TO LOT 68 ON DEPOSITED PLAN 36563 ON 10.12.2008
		TO ENAB	BLE ISSUE OF A DIGITAL CERTIFICATE OF TITLE.
NOTE 3:		THE ABC	VE NOTE MAY NOT BE SHOWN ON THE SUPERSEDED PAPER CERTIFICATE
		OF TITLE	E OR ON THE CURRENT EDITION OF DUPLICATE CERTIFICATE OF TITLE.
NOTE 4:		DUPLIC.	ATE CERTIFICATE OF TITLE NOT ISSUED AS REQUESTED BY DEALING

END OF PAGE 1 - CONTINUED OVER

RECORD OF CERTIFICATE OF TITLE

REGISTER NUMBER: 68/DP36563

VOLUME/FOLIO: 2798-962

PAGE 2

M39258



TP3 + PLACE MATCH AT AN ARE DRAWN Tank 1 and 10 and 1 and Date 15 March 2018 Scale 1:20 000 @ A3 Drawing No. 715-194 CP1 Staff LC **Culford** Agrindustry CULFORD AGRI INDUSTRY PRECINCT Estate Plan Albany Highway, North Bannister **11.3 APPENDIC C – AUTHORITY TO PROCEED LETTER**



30 July 2018

Department of Water and Environmental Regulation The Atrium, Level 4 168 St Georges Terrace PERTH WA 6000

RE - RICHGRO - LEASE of Part of Lot 68, 6364 Albany Highway NORTH BANNISTER 6390

To whom it may concern

CONFIRMATION OF LEASE ARRANGEMENT

AB No2 Pty Ltd as Trustee for the Culford Unit Trust (ACN 159 232 881) wishes to confirm that we have entered into an agreement with A Richards Pty Ltd (ACN 008 734 852) of Lot 186 Acourt Road, Canning Vale WA (Richgro) to lease the Premises as referred to in their Works Approval for a period of up to 40 years. The agreement entitles Richgro to develop the site for the purposes specified in the Works Approval.

CLARIFICATION OF CARETAKERS RESIDENCE

AB No 2 Pty Ltd owns Lots 68, 10, 11 and 123 which together make up the Culford Agri Industry Precinct. The Caretakers residence is situated on Lot 11.

The Residence is used for a Caretaker, so we always have a presence on site mainly for Security and Fire issues.

The Caretaker understands that most of industries on site will be Prescribed activities.

We therefore accept and consent to the Caretaker residence not being considered as a sensitive receptor with regard to the DWER definition of a sensitive receptor.

Kind Regards,

Kim Gorey Director AB No 2

Richard Atkins Director AB No 2

> Culford Agri Industry AB No 2 Pty Ltd atf Culford Unit Trust PO Box 662, Nedlands WA 6009 T: (08) 6382 1800 F: (08) 6382 1801 ABN: 68 272 201 165

12 DRAWINGS

Drawing CUL-COM-001	Cover Sheet, Locality Plan and Drawing Schedule
Drawing CUL-COM-002	Site Plan
Drawing CUL-COM-003	Overall Plan Layout
Drawing CUL-COM-004	General Works Layout – Plan 1 of 3
Drawing CUL-COM-005	General Works Layout – Plan 2 of 3
Drawing CUL-COM-006	General Works Layout – Plan 3 of 3
Drawing CUL-COM-007	Earthworks Layout Plan
Drawing CUL-COM-008	Site Sections – Sheet 1 of 2
Drawing CUL-COM-009	Site Sections – Sheet 2 of 2
Drawing CUL-COM-010	Miscellaneous Details – Sheet 1 of 2
Drawing CUL-COM-011	Miscellaneous Details – Sheet 2 of 2
Drawing CUL-COM-012	Setout Layout Plan
Drawing CUL-COM-013	Prescribed Area Plan



RICHGRO CULFORD AGRI INDUSTRY PRECINCT

6364 Albany Highway, North Bannister, WA (Shire of Boddington)

PROPOSED COMPOST FACILITY



NOT TO SCALE

DRAWING SCHEDULE

DRAWING No.	REVISION	DESCRIPTION
CUL - COM - 001	С	COVER SHEET, LOCALITY PLAN & DRAWING SCHEDULE
CUL - COM - 002	С	SITE PLAN
CUL - COM - 003	C	OVERALL LAYOUT PLAN
CUL - COM - 004	C	GENERAL WORKS LAYOUT - PLAN 1 OF 3
CUL - COM - 005	C	GENERAL WORKS LAYOUT - PLAN 2 OF 3
CUL - COM - 006	С	GENERAL WORKS LAYOUT - PLAN 3 OF 3
CUL - COM - 007	С	EARTHWORKS LAYOUT PLAN
CUL - COM - 008	С	SITE SECTIONS - SHEET 1 OF 2
CUL - COM - 009	С	SITE SECTIONS - SHEET 2 OF 2
CUL - COM - 010	C	MISCELLANEOUS DETAILS - SHEET 1 OF 2
CUL - COM - 011	С	MISCELLANEOUS DETAILS - SHEET 2 OF 2
CUL - COM - 012	C	SETOUT LAYOUT PLAN
CUL - COM - 013	C	PRESCRIBED AREA PLAN

FOR WORKS APPROVAL 10 OCTOBER 2018



an & As	soc	iates Pty Ltd
ABN: 22	112 39	9 514
59, WA 6148	Phone:	0402 373 582
2 WA 0148	Web:	www.bowmanassociates.com.au

Client				Location	Drawing Title			
Richgro				6364 Albany Hwy, North Bannister	Cover Sheet,	Locality Plan & Drg. Sch	edule	
Date	Scale	Design By	Drawn By	Project		Drawing Number	Revision	Drawing Size
10/10/18	N.T.S	B.W.B.	S.B.Y.	Culford Agri Industry Precinct - Proposed Com	post Facility	CUL - COM - 001	C	A1





10 OCTOBER	2018
------------	------

Dowmon & Associator Dty Ltd	Client				Location	Drawing Title
ABN: 22 112 399 514	Richgro				6364 Albany Hwy, North Bannister	Overa
Mail: PO Box 2059, Rossmoyne WA 6148 Phone: 0402 373 582	Date	Scale	Design By	Drawn By	Project	
Web: www.bowmanassociates.com.au	10/10/18	1:1,000	B.W.B.	S.B.Y.	Culford Agri Industry Precinct - Proposed Con	npost Facility



LEGEND:

16.0	EXISTING CONTOUR (0.5m INTERVAL)
//	EXISTING FENCE
	PRESCRIBED BOUNDARY
344.0	DESIGN CONTOUR (0.5m INTERVAL)
	PROPOSED KERB AND CHANNEL (REFER TO DETAIL)
_ · _ · _ · _ · _ · _	PROPOSED BATTER EXTENT
— ‹ — ‹ —	PROPOSED DRAINAGE CHANNEL (INVERT)
	PROPOSED ACCESS TRACK
	PROPOSED HARDSTAND AREA
	PROPOSED STORMWATER DAM
+ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$ $+$	PROPOSED LEACHATE POND
	PROPOSED ACCESS ROAD AND BUILDING PAD
	PROPOSED BOULDER RETAINING WALL
× <u>342.88</u>	PROPOSED FINISHED SURFACE LEVEL

NOTES:

] D	rawi	ing Number Revision Drawing	Size
rks	La	yout - Plan 1 of 3	
		SCALE 1:500 @ A1 SCALE 1:1 000 @ /	43
		10 0 10 20 30 40	50m
<			
	<u> </u>	BM ACCESS ROAD	
	1 L	ISm TRANSITION ROAD EVELS AND CROSSFALL	
<	11.	JU DATA AVAILADLE TU ASSIST WITT SETUUT.	
	10.	PROPERTY BOUNDARY FENCING BY OTHERS. EXACT LOCATION TO BE CONFIRMED ON SITE.	
`		SAFETY FENCE BY OTHERS AND MUST BE INCORPORATED INTO DESIGN DUE TO HEIGHT OF WALLS	5.
	9.	SAFETY FENCE TO ALL RETAINING WALLS NOT CONSIDERED AS PART OF THIS DESIGN. DESIGN OF	
<	6.	SURFACE LEVELS. LOCATION OF PERIMETER STORMWATER DIVERSION	
-	4. 5.	EXISTING CONTOURS ARE AT 0.50m INTERVAL. DESIGN SURFACE SHOWN REPRESENT THE FINISHED	
	3.	CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE LOCATION AND PROTECTION OF ALL UNDERGROUND SERVICES PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORKS.	
_	2.	EXISTING VEGETATION AND TREES NOT LOCATED BY SURVEYOR.	
	1.	SETOUT AND LEVELS MUST BE CONFIRMED ON SITE PRIOR TO COMMENCING ANY CONSTRUCTION.	
_	1	DUE TO ACCURACY OF SURVEY IN SOME APEAS ALL	

CUL - COM - 004

С

A1



LEGEND:



EXISTING CONTOUR (0.5m INTERVAL) EXISTING FENCE PRESCRIBED BOUNDARY DESIGN CONTOUR (0.5m INTERVAL) PROPOSED KERB AND CHANNEL (REFER TO DETAIL) PROPOSED BATTER EXTENT <--- PROPOSED DRAINAGE CHANNEL (INVERT)</pre> PROPOSED ACCESS TRACK PROPOSED HARDSTAND AREA PROPOSED STORMWATER DAM PROPOSED LEACHATE POND PROPOSED ACCESS ROAD AND BUILDING PAD PROPOSED BOULDER RETAINING WALL PROPOSED FINISHED SURFACE LEVEL

NOTES:

1.	DUE TO	ACCURACY	OF SURV	/EY	IN SOME	AREAS	ALL
	SETOUT	AND LEVEL	S MUST	ΒE	CONFIRME	ED ON S	ITE
	PRIOR T	O COMMENC	ING ANY	CON	ISTRUCTI	ON.	

- EXISTING VEGETATION AND TREES NOT LOCATED BY 2. SURVEYOR.
- CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE LOCATION AND 3. PROTECTION OF ALL UNDERGROUND SERVICES PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORKS.
- EXISTING CONTOURS ARE AT 0.50m INTERVAL.
- DESIGN SURFACE SHOWN REPRESENT THE FINISHED 5. SURFACE LEVELS. 6.
- LOCATION OF PERIMETER STORMWATER DIVERSION DRAINS TO BE CONFIRMED ON SITE.
- SAFETY FENCE TO ALL RETAINING WALLS NOT CONSIDERED AS PART OF THIS DESIGN. DESIGN OF 9. SAFFTY FENCE BY OTHERS AND MUST BE INCORPORATED INTO DESIGN DUE TO HEIGHT OF WALLS.
- PROPERTY BOUNDARY FENCING BY OTHERS. EXACT 10. LOCATION TO BE CONFIRMED ON SITE.
- 11. 3D DATA AVAILABLE TO ASSIST WITH SETOUT.

	10	0	10	20	30	40	50m
	SCALE	1:500 (â) A1		SCAL	E 1:1 000	@ A3
ks Lay	out -	Pla	n 2 of	f 3			

Drawing Number	Revision	Drawing Size
CUL - COM - 005	С	A1





004

CUL-COM-

No.

DRAWING

SNIO

LEGEND:

 76.0
 EXISTING CONTOUR (0.5m INTERVAL)

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •

 •
 •</

- DUE TO ACCURACY OF SURVEY IN SOME AREAS ALL SETOUT AND LEVELS MUST BE CONFIRMED ON SITE PRIOR TO COMMENCING ANY CONSTRUCTION.
- EXISTING VEGETATION AND TREES NOT LOCATED BY SURVEYOR.
- 3. CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE LOCATION AND PROTECTION OF ALL UNDERGROUND SERVICES PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORKS.
- 4. EXISTING CONTOURS ARE AT 0.50m INTERVAL.
- DESIGN SURFACE SHOWN REPRESENT THE FINISHED SURFACE LEVELS.
 LOCATION OF PERIMETER STORMWATER DIVERSION
- DCATION OF PERIMETER STORMWATER DIVERSI DRAINS TO BE CONFIRMED ON SITE.
 SAFETY FENCE TO ALL RETAINING WALLS NOT
- SAFETY FENCE TO ALL RETAINING WALLS NOT CONSIDERED AS PART OF THIS DESIGN. DESIGN OF SAFETY FENCE BY OTHERS AND MUST BE INCORPORATED INTO DESIGN DUE TO HEIGHT OF WALLS.
- PROPERTY BOUNDARY FENCING BY OTHERS. EXACT LOCATION TO BE CONFIRMED ON SITE.
- 11. 3D DATA AVAILABLE TO ASSIST WITH SETOUT.

10	0	10	20	30	40	50m
SCAL	F 1:500 @	A1		SCAL	F 1:1 000	м д 3

General Works Layout - Plan 3 of 3 Drawing Number Revision CUL - COM - 006 C A1



	Deumeen Q. Associates Dtuiltel	Client				Location Drawing Tit	
Bowman & Associates Pty Ltd ABN: 22 112 399 514 Mail: PO Box 2059, Rossmovne WA 6148 Phone: 0402 373 582	Bowman & Associates Pty Ltd ABN: 22 112 399 514	Richgro				6364 Albany Hwy, North Bannister E	
	Mail: PO Box 2059, Phone: 0402 373 582 Rossmovne WA 6148	Date	Scale	Design By	Drawn By	Project	
ΨIÝ	Web: www.bowmanassociates.com.au	10/10/18	1:1,000	B.W.B.	S.B.Y.	Culford Agri Industry Precinct - Proposed Com	post Facility

	LEGEND:
318.0	EXISTING CONTOUR (0.5m INTERVAL)
/ /	EXISTING FENCE
	PRESCRIBED BOUNDARY
344.0	DESIGN CONTOUR (0.5m INTERVAL)
	PROPOSED DRAINAGE CHANNEL (INVERT)
	PROPOSED ACCESS TRACK

CUT		FILL	
	5.0 TO 10.0m		5.0 TO 10.0m
	2.0 TO 5.0m		2.0 TO 5.0m
	1.0 TO 2.0m		1.0 TO 2.0m
	0.5 TO 1.0m		0.5 TO 1.0m
	0.25 TO 0.5m		0.25 TO 0.5m
	0 TO 0.25m		0 TO 0.25m

INDICATIVE STORMWATER DAM EARTHWORKS								
	SCHEDULE							
CUT OR FILL	ITEM	VOLUME (M ³)						
CUT	APPROXIMATE CUT	7,100						
FILL	APPROXIMATE FILL	1,250						
	NO ALLOWANCE FOR STRIPPING, BULKING /							
	COMPACTION FACTOR, SUBGRADE TREATMENT OR							
	PERIMETER STORMWATER DRAINAGE CHANNELS.							
INDICA ⁻	TIVE INFRASTRUCTURE EARTHW	ORKS						
	SCHEDULE							
CUT OR FILL	ITEM	VOLUME (M ³)						
CUT	CUT APPROXIMATE CUT							
FILL	47,100							
	COMPACTION FACTOR, PAVEMENTS OR PERIMETER							
	STORMWATER DRAINAGE CHANNELS.							

NOTES:

1. DUE TO ACCURACY OF SURVEY IN SOME AREAS ALL SETOUT AND LEVELS MUST BE CONFIRMED ON SITE PRIOR TO COMMENCING ANY CONSTRUCTION.

COMMENCING ANY CONSTRUCTION. 5. EARTHWORKS CUT AND FILL VOLUMES ARE TAKEN BETWEEN EXISTING SURVEYED SURFACE AND FINISHED SURFACE. NO ALLOWANCE FOR SUBGRADE WORKS OR STRIPPING OF EXISTING SURFACE. VOLUMES DO NOT ALLOW FOR PAVEMENTS OR STORMWATER DRAINAGE PERIMETER WORKS 6. EXISTING CONTOURS ARE AT 0.50m INTERVAL. 7. DESIGN SURFACE SHOWN IS FINISHED SURFACE PROFILE. LEVELS SHOWN REPRESENT THE FINISHED SURFACE LEVELS. 8. 3D DATA AVAILABLE TO ASSIST WITH SETOUT.

0

20

	SCALE 1:1000 @ A1	SCALE	1:2000 @ A3					
Title								
Earthworks Layout Plan								
	Drawing Number	Revision	Drawing Size					
acility	CUL - COM - 007	C	A1					

20 40 60

80 100m











FOR WORKS APPROVAL

|--|

	Dowmon & Acception Dty Ltd	Client				Location	Drawing Title
BOWMAN & ASSOCIATES PTY Ltd ABN: 22 112 399 514 Mail: PO Box 2059, Bosmovne WA 6148	ABN: 22 112 399 514	Richgro				6364 Albany Hwy, North Bannister	Setout Pla
	Mail: PO Box 2059, Phone: 0402 373 582 Rossmovne WA 6148	Date	Scale	Design By	Drawn By	Project	
٣Y	Web: www.bowmanassociates.com.au	10/10/18	1:1,000	B.W.B.	S.B.Y.	Culford Agri Industry Precinct - Proposed Compost Facility	

N S

SETOUT TABLE

PT	EASTING	NORTHING	R.L.
PT 01 02 03 04 05 06 07 08 09 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 20 21 22 24 25 26 27 28 30 31 23 34 35 36 7 89 00 1 22 33 40 41 42 44 45 46 7 89 40 41 42 44 45 46 47 44 45 46 47 44 45 46 47 44 45 46 47 46 47 46 47 47 46 47 47 47 47 47 47 47 47 47 47 47 47 47	EASTING 444294.195 444275.196 444275.196 444275.196 444250.696 444218.696 444218.696 444218.696 444218.696 444218.696 444218.696 444250.696 444273.773 444273.773 444275.886 444273.773 444274.78.86 444273.773 444274.78.86 444273.773 444274.793 444204.073 444204.073 444128.491 444128.491 444128.491 444128.491 444076.991 444076.991 444076.991 444077.191 444027.191 444027.191 444027.191 444027.191 444027.191 444027.191 444027.191 444039.191 444039.191 444039.191 443870.389 443870.389 443870.395 443886.77 443862.395 443862.389 443862.389 443862.389 443862.389 443862.389	NORTHING 6396299.058 6396299.068 6396299.066 6396299.066 6396299.066 6396299.066 6396319.066 6396319.066 6396313.066 6396313.066 6396313.065 6396314.503 6396331.627 6396331.627 6396438.063 6396331.627 6396438.027 6396464.127 6396464.127 6396464.127 6396464.127 6396463.827 6396463.827 6396463.827 6396463.827 6396463.827 6396463.827 6396463.827 6396447.827 6396447.827 6396447.827 6396447.827 6396447.827 6396445.827 6396455.	R.L. 352.500 352.000 352.000 352.000 351.700 351.700 351.700 351.550 351.550 351.550 351.550 351.550 351.033 350.850 345.033 344.100 344.983 342.879 341.775 342.000 342.760 341.485 343.755 344.900 342.760 342.760 342.760 342.760 342.760 342.760 342.500 339.250 339.250 333.250 333.250 333.250 333.250 333.250 333.250 333.250 333.250 335.000 329.000 329.00
49 50	443898.392 443908.095	6396387.861 6396385.442	328.750 328.750

NOTES:

- ALL SETOUT AND LEVELS MUST BE CONFIRMED ON SITE PRIOR TO COMMENCING ANY CONSTRUCTION.
 CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE LOCATION AND PROTECTION OF ALL UNDERGROUND SERVICES PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORKS.
- A. CONTOURS SHOWN ARE AT 1.0m INTERVAL.
 4. DESIGN SURFACE SHOWN AND SETOUT IS REPRESENT THE
- DESIGN SURFACE SHOWN AND SETURT IS REPRESENT THE FINISHED SURFACE LEVELS.
 LOCATION AND LEVELS OF PERIMETER ACCESS TRACKS TO BE CONFIRMED ON SITE.
 LOCATION AND LEVELS OF PERIMETER STORMWATER DIVERSION DRAINS TO BE CONFIRMED ON SITE.
 3D DATA AVAILABLE TO ASSIST WITH SETOUT.

	20 0 20 40	60	80 100m
	SCALE 1:1000 @ A1	SCALE	1:2000 @ A3
t Plan			
	Drawing Number	Revision	Drawing Size
	CUL - COM - 012	C	A1

